CITY OF BRIDGEPORT
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE
REGULAL MEETING
APRIL 22, 2025

ATTENDANCE:  Aikeem Boyd, Co-chair; Eneida Martinez, Co-chair; Jeanette
Herron, Ernest Newton, Maria Valle

OTHERS: Council Member(s): R. Ortiz, M. Pereira & A. Castillo; Aaron
Curry, Deputy Director of Public Facilities; M. Jankovsky,
Associate City Attorney

CALL TO ORDER

Co-chair Boyd called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. A quorum was present.

APPROVAL OF COMMITTEE MINUTES:

March 17, 2025 (Public Hearing)

** COUNCIL MEMBER NEWTON MOVED TO APPROVE THE FOLLOWING
MINUTES

MARCH 17, 2025 PUBLIC HEARING
MARCH 25, 2025 REGULAR MEETING

** COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ SECONDED.

** THE MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE MARCH 17, 2025
PUBLIC HEARING AND THE MARCH 25, 2025 REGULAR MEETING AS
SUBMITTED PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

58-24 Proposed Amendment to the Municipal Code of Ordinances, Chapter 12.28 —
Park Use Regulations, amend Section 12.28.190 — Adult Sports Team Registration Fees.

Mr. Curry said that they were charging $100.00 for the registration adult leagues. It doesn’t
cover the maintenance and they are looking to increase it to $200.00 just to cover the overtime

required for the maintenance.

Atty. Jankovsky said that the document said that the Parks Department approved the increase,

but it was the Parks Board that actually improved the increase.

Council Member Boyd asked if the $200.00 was the maximum they could charge. Mr. Curry said
that he just increased it by $100.00. Council Member Herron asked if they had compared the fee

with other municipalities. Mr. Curry said that he had not.

City of Bridgeport

Ordinance Committee

Regular Meeting

April 22, 2025 Page 1



Council Member Herron said that it was important to have accurate figures because she felt it
was a low amount. Mr. Curry said that they had increased other fees. Discussion followed.

Council Member Valle said that they wanted to increase the fee for soccer, baseball, etc. Mr.
Curry said that this was so. She asked how many parks there were in Bridgeport. Mr. Curry said
that there were about 53 or 54, but that number including pocket parks. He added that there were
some people who go to the fields and play without the proper permits and that this can only be
enforced by the Bridgeport Police.

Council Member Valle said that on Sundays, there are groups who use the fields without permit
and take up all the nearby parking, but those who go to church come home to find there is no
parking. Also, they leave the parks dirty with garbage all around.

Mr. Curry said that they don’t charge for youth teams which is why they have to raise the other
fees. He said that when groups reserve the fields, they are supposed to clean up after themselves.

Council Member Newton said at Newfield there is soccer and other sports. He felt that $200 was
too low and said it should be at least $250. He said that the adults should pay to use the parks.
It’s not a lot of money compared to Fairfield or Westport.

Council Member Herron said that when her groups get park permits, there has to be a $1,000
deposit for clean-up. She asked if this was being done with the sports groups because they will
check to make sure it is clean so they can get their money back. Clean ups are costly. Mr. Curry
said that when there are a large number of kids, they do have the insurance deposit. Council
Member Herron said that it was important to have a clean-up fee because her District has had
problems along with Council Member Pereira’s District.

Council Member Pereira asked how many parks have sports fields. Mr. Curry said that he
thought there were probably 13 parks with playing fields. She spoke about Roosevelt School that
has night soccer and they don’t comply. Council Member Newton said that Roosevelt was a
school and the City has no control. Discussion followed.

Council Member Pereira asked whether a number of teams have already paid the fees. Mr. Curry
said that there were already a number of teams that have paid and started playing. If this was
approved by Council, it would be included in the new budget. It won’t be retroactive. Discussion
followed about when the change would be activated.

Council Member Martinez said that she wanted to hear from Atty. Jankovsky about possibly
increasing the fee because it had already been approved by the Parks Board. They would
probably have to reappear before the Parks Board.

Council Member Newton asked if they could amend the ordinance. Atty. Jankovsky said that he
thought they could go ahead with the amendment and will eventually have to go back to the
Parks Board.

City of Bridgeport

Ordinance Committee

Regular Meeting

April 22, 2025 Page 2



Council Member Martinez said that she was in favor of increasing it. Discussion followed about
the manpower needed to maintain the fields.
** COUNCIL MEMBER NEWTON MOVED TO INCREASE THE FEE TO $300.

Council Member Boyd asked why the Parks Board had increased it to $200. Council Member
Martinez pointed out that Mr. Curry had come up with the amount. Mr. Curry said that he had
spoken with others and there were concerns that if they increased the fee too high, people would
no longer play there.

Council Member Pereira said that in Trumbull they have a complicated schedule, which she
reviewed with the Committee. They charge by the hour and whether the team is playing on turf
or grass. They also charge for Little League. They also charge for night lighting. Discussion
followed.

Council Member Herron said that they were the lowest fee in the area and people know that. She
added that she would like to see a clean-up fee. Discussion followed.

Council Member Valle pointed out that the Caribe teams pay a fee to play on the team. She said
that they need to re-visit the policy about youth teams. Mr. Curry apologized for not having more
information and said he usually checks with CCM about issues like this. He added that when a
team is scheduled to play, they send Parks Maintenance afterward. With some of the other towns,
their Parks union employees have stated minimums of two staff being sent to the events. That
will significantly increase the overtime. There are events occurring all over the City all the time.

Council Member Pereira asked about the handball events that are now being held. She said that
they have to pay for basketball games played on pavement and asked about pickleball and
handball tournament needing permits. Mr. Curry said that they are working on software that will
allow them to keep track of all the sports fields in the parks. The scheduling would be handled
through the internet, along with baseball, cricket and other sports. He said that they may look at
the out of town youth leagues.

Council Member Newton said that they should stick to the increase to $300 and then bring it to
the Parks Board.

Council Member Ortiz asked when they would be issuing the permit. Mr. Curry reviewed the
details with him.

Council Member Herron said that she knew that there was a problem with enforcement and said
that they need to talk to the Police Department about this. She said that staff can drop off the
garbage cans the night before and then pick them up afterwards. Having the clean-up deposit will
make people pay attentions because they want their money back. She encouraged Mr. Curry to
start with the out of town youth leagues and charge them a fee. There are enough Bridgeport
residents using the parks. Mr. Curry said that he would have to check the ordinance first before
changing the rules and regulations for the parks.

City of Bridgeport

Ordinance Committee

Regular Meeting

April 22, 2025 Page 3



Council Member Castillo spoke about Trumbull residents parking on the grass and putting up
speakers at one of the parks. They are playing for free. If someone had gone to Trumbull to play,
they would end up with a ticket.

Mr. Curry said that the Parks staff doesn’t have enough staff and neither does the Police
Department. Council Member Newton said that they used to have Park Police, but they don’t
anymore. He’ll bring that up during Budget.

** COUNCIL MEMBER NEWTON MOVED TO AMEND AGENDA ITEM 58-
24 PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF ORDINANCES,
CHAPTER 12.28 - PARK USE REGULATIONS, AMEND SECTION 12.28.190 - ADULT
SPORTS TEAM REGISTRATION FEES TO INCREASE THE AMOUNT FROM $200
TO $300.

** COUNCIL MEMBER HERRON SECONDED.

** THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

ADJOURNMENT

** COUNCIL MEMBER HERRON MOVED TO ADJOURN.
** COUNCIL MEMBER BOYD SECONDED.
**THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

The meeting adjourned at 6:30 p.m.
Respectfully submitted

S. L. Soltes
Telesco Secretarial Services

City of Bridgeport

Ordinance Committee

Regular Meeting

April 22, 2025 Page 4



